ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE RESOURCES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
January 28, 2011
3:31 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Joe Paskvan, Co-Chair

Senat or Thomas WAgoner, Co-Chair

Senator Bill Welechowski, Vice Chair - via tel econference
Senator Lesil MQiire

Senator Hollis French

Senator Gary Stevens

MEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Bert Stednman
OTHER LEGQ SLATORS PRESENT
Senator Fred Dyson
Senator Cathy G essel
Senat or Joe Thomas

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

Presentation: Kevin Banks, Director, Division of Ol And Gas,
Department OF Natural Resources (DNR)

- HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REGQ STER
KEVI N BANKS, Director
Division of Ol and Gas
Depart ment of Natural Resources (DNR)
Anchor age, AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented an overvi ew of his division.
SENATOR FRED DYSON

Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, AK

SENATE RES COW TTEE -1- January 28, 2011



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Asked oil and gas questions relative to M.
Banks' presentation.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:31: 05 PM

CO CHAIR WAGONER call ed the Senate Resources Standing Conmittee
nmeeting to order at 3:31 p.m Present at the call to order were
Senators French, MCGuire, Co-Chair Paskvan and Co- Chair Wagoner.

Presentation: Kevin Banks, Director, Division of Gl and Gas,
Departnent of Natural Resources (DNR)

3:31:38 PM

KEVIN BANKS, Director, Division of GOl and Gas, Departnent of
Nat ural Resources (DNR), presented an overview of his division
He stated that in 2010, the Division started to develop a
strategic plan. They have ninety staff, and they need to act
consciously and nake sure appropriate people have vetted
i nportant decisions and reached a consensus. At the sane tine,
he noted, they nust be conscious of the inpact of their
deci si ons on revenue and devel opnent.

3:34: 35 PM
SENATOR G ESSEL arrived at the neeting.

MR. BANKS pointed out that the division is told what it needs to
do by statute, and nmakes decisions that affect the whole state.
He said they want to naxim ze devel opnent of resources for the
greatest benefit of all Al askans, and the economically efficient
recovery of resources; the Conservation Division, on the other
hand, seeks to develop resources wth the I|east surface
di srupti on.

CO CHAI R PASKVAN asked about interplay of the two.

MR. BANKS answered that normally units are formed to assure
maxi mum recovery of the resource. He stated he nust assure
facilities are used efficiently, and nust also |ook at plans of
operation. He noted that if you thought of the state as a
producer, it would be nunber four as a royalty producer.

3:37:22 PM

MR. BANKS said the Petrol eum Systens Integrity Ofice (PSIO was
added to the division and relies on it for internet technol ogy
and adm ni strative support, but has its own budget. He said that
it may be considered an added | ayer of regulatory inpact, but it

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 2- January 28, 2011



tells oil conpanies what they are capable of - and responsible
for - devel oping resources safely.

3:40: 14 PM
SENATOR STEVENS j oi ned the conmmttee.

3:40: 52 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI j oi ned the neeting via tel econference.

MR. BANKS expl ai ned the division's workfl ow design.

3:41: 54 PM
CO CHAI R PASKVAN asked when he anticipated the final strategic
pl an woul d be rel eased.

3:42:59 PM

MR. BANKS responded that when the new comm ssioner conpletes his
transition, a docunent should be available. He explained that
resource evaluation conpleted a Cook Inlet gas supply study | ast
Decenber, which only covers existing fields. The study exam nes
the potential for additional gas from the existing fields, and
will reveal how nmuch it would cost to devel op those fields.

MR. BANKS explained that once resources have been identified,
the leasing staff begins the process of making those |ands
avai lable in a bonus bid auction as required by |aw. The process
i ncl udes devel opment of a best interest finding, a conplicated
docunent. He noted the division holds |eases sales two tines a
year.

3:45: 45 PM

SENATOR DYSON asked if the state's jurisdiction starts at the
offshore islands in the Beaufort Sea or from the existing
changi ng coastli ne.

MR. BANKS answered the islands count, and sonetines the coast
does, dependi ng on whether the islands are subnmerged or not.

SENATOR DYSON asked if we have a contest with the federal
gover nnent over that.

MR. BANKS replied there's always potential for disagreenent, but
he wouldn't anticipate it beconmng a serious problem Part of
the North Star unit is in federal land, and the division is in
i ntense discussion with the devel oper and the federal governnent
about that.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 3- January 28, 2011



3:48: 33 PM

MR. BANKS said that the royalty accounting staff has created an
electronic filing process, and nost |essees pay online. The
division is able to validate those revenues in an audited form

3:49: 06 PM

CO CHAI R PASKVAN asked about the recent Departnent of Revenue
(DOR) report concerning the need for a central data base to
anal yze capital expenditure nonies. He asked if the division's
systemis different.

MR BANKS replied their system is different because the
Department of Revenue has to track costs and the DNR does not;
instead, the DNR is interested in |eases and calculation of
royalty. They manage for ownership issues and assi gn ownership.

3:51:27 PM

He stated the division's staff audits state and federal royalty
by arrangenent, and that audit clainms in the anmnount of $33
mllion are currently outstandi ng.

CO- CHAI R PASKVAN asked, in trying to understand the distinction
bet ween DOR and DNR and ACES audits, how current is DNR?

MR. BANKS replied that the division's audits aren't going as
fast as he would like them to. They have been in the state of
catch up for quite a while; there is sone potential for shared
information between DNR and DOR particularly measuring
production data. As the automation of those systens inproves,
they will automatically share that information.

3:54:39 PM
CO CHAI R PASKVAN asked what audits typically show.

MR. BANKS answered that in nost cases they are auditing for
increased value in royalty, although sonetines they identify
problenms with the way 20-year ol d agreenents are worKking.

3:56:10 PM

He then explained that the Gap analysis is designed to find
where the state has overlap in upstream issues. It is largely
conplete, and there is a list of corrective actions that has
been submitted to the Natural Resources, Departnment of Law
Subcabi net. The subcabinet is preparing recomendations for the
gover nor.

CO CHAI R PASKVAN asked what is nmeant by "integrity events."

SENATE RES COW TTEE -4- January 28, 2011



MR. BANKS answered that integrity events typically occur because
sonme corrosion inspection is mssing in the managenent plans of
conpani es operating the equiprment. The division is seeking the
root causes of integrity events; they get phone calls from
enpl oyees working for the conpanies, raising concerns. The
departnment | ooks at the concerns.

CO CHAI R PASKVAN asked what has been the success of an enpl oyee
calling in.

MR. BANKS answered they haven't had a lot of valid calls, but
enough to raise issues. It is usually enough to discuss with the
operator. Oten an enployee wll see sonething; for instance,
peopl e were concerned that Exxon was taking equi pnent away from
Poi nt Thonson. But they discovered that was not the case.

4:00: 26 PM
CO CHAI R PASKVAN asked how aware enployees are of a nunber to
cont act .

MR. BANKS said the division has it on their website, but
probably it's not wi dely known.

4:02:23 PM
SENATOR DYSON asked about drilling for hydrates and new
t echnol ogy.

MR. BANKS explained that hydrates are highly experimental. No
one has effectively figured out how to produce them A test
conducted in Canada |asted six days; hydrates form in an ice
crystal cage (nethane nolecule) at a specific range of pressure
and tenperature. On the North Slope, those pressures and
tenperatures form at a very shallow level, below the existing
infrastructure. The USGS has estimated 85 trillion cubic feet of
technically recoverable gas from hydrates in the area around the
existing infrastructure. They have known that hydrates are a
drilling hazard, which also could provide a nmethod of recovering
hydrates; as wells are drilled through the hydrates, the nethane
is released and could cause hydrate gas to be kicked into the

well. This occurs when the drilling nuds are too warm and heat
up the area around the well, or when pressure is relieved from
the well. A third techniqgue being studied is to inject co2 into

a well to displace the nethane nol ecul es.

4:05:53 PM

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 5- January 28, 2011



MR. BANKS further stated the USGS is proposing drilling a well
at Prudhoe Bay to try sonme new t echni ques.

SENATOR DYSON asked how deep those wells woul d be.

MR. BANKS said he wanted to get a better answer, but he thought
about five thousand feet.

4:07:11 PM
SENATOR FRENCH asked what is happening with heavy oil production
on the North Sl ope.

MR. BANKS answered that heavy oil has been produced for sone
time, nostly at MIne Point, using punps at the bottom of the
wel l's. The issue has been how to get production w thout a |ot of
sand. They have been producing oil from Schrader Bluff for the
| ast ten years, and West Sak is another source of heavy oil from
t he sane structure.

He also noted that BP is experinmenting with a CHOPs heavy oil
produci ng system where they will produce the sand and renove it
at the surface. It's very expensive, but is a trenendously
prolific resource.

SENATOR FRENCH asked how far along it is. Is it permtted?
MR. BANKS answered yes.

4:10: 02 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOASKI asked about the Cook Inlet tinme table for
pr oducti on.

MR. BANKS said he didn't have an estimate off-hand for oil
production, but the division has an estimte of gas potential in
Cook Inlet; nunmbers are not in the trillions. The USGS is about
to conplete a resource assessnent of Cook Inlet that wll go
after a nore sophisticated estinmate for undi scovered technically
recoverable resource. He believes there are reserves of 1
trillion to 3 trillion cubic feet of gas in undiscovered
resour ces.

4:12: 57 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI asked how many acres are |eased by the
North Slope in Cook Inlet that are not currently being
devel oped, and do we have tools to estimate rates of return on
those fields under a different tax structure.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 6- January 28, 2011



MR. BANKS said that is a difficult question, and he would
respond to it later.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said he heard from various producers and
explorers that they would develop nore fields with a change in
tax structure.

4:15:48 PM
SENATOR MCGQUI RE asked M. Banks to comment on North Sl ope shal e.

MR. BANKS replied that it is definitely worth paying attention
to.

CO CHAI R PASKVAN said they are hoping to have a presentation on
shale oil in 3-4 weeks.

SENATOR FRENCH asked for an update on ConocoPhillips getting the
permt for crossing the Coleville River.

MR. BANKS answered that higher-ups in the Corps have renmanded
the decision to revisit their previous decision. There was
concern about burying a pipe rather than letting it cross over
the river, and ConocoPhillips is still waiting for a deci sion.

SENATOR FRENCH asked if the long-tine future devel opment of NPRA
dermands a bridge at some point.

MR. BANKS answered he couldn't agree nore; three quarters of gas
isin the Arctic and a crossing is essential.

4:21:48 PM

SENATOR FRENCH not ed t hat sonet i mes t he public has
m sconceptions on how ACES applies to different sections of
| and.

MR. BANKS responded that the tax system applies to on-shore
federal land, including NPRA Alaska shares in royalties from
the NPRA, but those revenues are dedicated by the federal
governnment to local inpact funding. The current status of ANWR
is that the state would receive ninety percent of the royalties
from devel opnent of ANWR In attenpts to gain approval to open
ANWR, our delegation has been willing to accept fifty percent,
but that hasn't happened. The OCS provides a mnimal share of
royalty sharing.

4:24:27 PM

SENATE RES COW TTEE -7- January 28, 2011



SENATOR DYSON noted that onshore states in the Gl f of Mexico
have negotiated with the federal governnent to get nore revenues
because of onshore inpacts. Wuld those negotiations include us?

MR. BANKS said they would not.

4:25:39 PM

CO CHAIR PASKVAN asked if M. Banks could review conmmerci al
achi evenents in 2010, such as conpletion of a study on the
i npact of shale gas on gas pricing in the |lower 48, and other
itemns.

MR. BANKS stated that prelimnary economc studies for a bullet
line are being conducted with a fresh |look at costs from the
Al askan Devel opnent Corporation. Shale gas prices and inpacts
work was conducted by Black and Veatch, and that study is
available on the DNR website. Compl etion of regulations
governing calculation of royalty value, and inplenenting the
aspects of AG A that called for calculating how royalty in kind
and royalty in value would be calculated, is not conplete.

CO CHAI R PASKVAN asked if those were the regul ations that assune
a coupled tax structure for oil and gas.

MR. BANKS said it sinplified the cal cul ation.

4:30: 43 PM
CO CHAI R PASKVAN said when it cones to audits, the proposed tax
bill shortens the statute of Ilimtations and asked what the

ol dest data is that has not yet been audited.

MR. BANKS replied that the state is losing royalty revenue as
they speak - every nonth, as it slips off the six-year statute
of limtations. Several audits should have been done, but were
not .

SENATOR DYSON asked how close the Anchorage area got several
weeks ago to not having enough gas pressure to run their power
pl ants.

MR. BANKS responded that MP was the one conpany that had
trouble, and they fired up their diesel plant; the other
utilities could be supplied from other sources.

4:32:38 PM

SENATOR DYSON asked if it was |lack of gas or a problemwith the
di stribution system

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 8- January 28, 2011



MR. BANKS replied that it was a question of who owned the gas
supply and who was obligated to deliver it. He noted that the
pl ayers play well together - getting gas to where it needs to
be, and then working the details out |ater.

SENATOR DYSON asked if there was enough gas to supply the region
physi cal | y.

MR. BANKS answered that there was enough gas, but it was an
owner ship issue.

CO- CHAIR WAGONER thanked M. Banks and finding no further
business to cone before the commttee, adjourned the neeting at

4:35 p. m

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 9- January 28, 2011



